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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Ningbo WanHao
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair
and reasonable.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping
Mr. Zheng Xin
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai

SUPERVISORS

Mrs. Mao Lihong
Mrs. Shi Weina
Mr. Li Yu Hua

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Mei Yin
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai

MEMBERS OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

MEMBERS OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (Chairman)
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
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Mr. Zhu Guo An

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho
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Mr. Zhu Guo An
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho
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KTC Partners CPA Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Yuyao

Zhejiang

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

2/F, Neich Tower

128 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE/WEBSITE

www.wanhaoholdings.com

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
PRINCIPAL BANKER
Bank of China
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Chairman’s Statement
FEME

| would like to take this opportunity to report last year’s operating
condition of the Group to our shareholders on behalf of the Board of
Directors.

In 2014, the Company continued its effort on business shifting from
simple manufacturing towards an integrated operation including research,
development and trade. During the year, our major business includes
manufacture of tablet computers and mobile phones, trading of materials
for the motherboard of electronic devices, and we started to explore
usage of 3G WCDMA modules and 4G modules in the industry. Although
we still failed to achieve profitability during the year, the Company had
paved the way for future growth, and had no major external debts except
for those involving our shareholder Wanli Holding Group, creating a
favourable condition for our business activities in 2015.

In 2015, the Company sets to focus on POS, tax control machine, router,
vehicle-borne router, IPC and security and monitoring equipment.
Wanhao has actively explored international markets and export our
product to countries such as Vietnam and Brazil. Meanwhile, we also
plan to explore and establish sales channels, enhance our sustainable
growth capability and further strengthen our business development effort.
Such efforts will create superb dynamics and growth momentum for the
Company.

Finally, I give my sincerest thanks to our shareholders, my fellow directors
and colleagues for their unwavering dedications and significant
contributions rendered to the Company in 2014.

Zhu Guo An
Chairman
Ningbo, PRC
25 March 2015
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB43,787,000 (2013: RMB47,039,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB3,252,000 over the previous year. The
decrease in the Group’s revenue is due to the intense competition during
the year.

The Group’s activities are divided into 2 reportable segments — namely (i)
sales of controller systems for consumer electrical and electronic
appliances and income from sales of small electrical appliances, and (i)
sales of controller systems for mobile phones and income from sales and
assembly of mobile phones. Accordingly, analysis by reportable
segments is provided in note 11.

The Group’s activities are primarily operated in the PRC. The Group’s
revenue is mainly attributable to customers in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Gross profit margin was 6.0% (2013: gross loss margin: 2.7%). Revenue
decreased by RMB3,252,000 due to the intense competition during the
year. The increase in gross profit mainly reflected the Group adopted
tighter cost control to mitigate the impact of price competition caused by
intense competition in the electronics industry.

The Group recorded other revenue of approximately RMB988,000 (2013:
RMB711,000), representing an increase of RMB277,000. For details,
please refer to notes 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Selling and distribution expenses recorded a decrease by RMB455,000
as a result of tighter cost control. Administrative expenses recorded a
decrease by RMB948,000 over the previous year. The decrease in
administrative expenses were mainly due to the decrease in inventories
directly written off (2014: Nil; 2013: RMB2,795,000), the decrease in
claims (2014: RMB61,000; 2013: RMB748,000), the increase in staff
costs (2014: RMB2,659,000; 2013: RMB1,779,000), the increase in
written off of plant and equipment (2014: RMB2,164,000; 2013:
RMB104,000). The remaining decrease was a result of tighter cost
control over the previous year. Finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB750,000 (2013: RMB912,000), which represented a decrease of
RMB162,000 over the previous year. The amount represents interest
incurred for bank borrowings (which was fully repaid) during the year.

Managements Discussion And Analysis
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Managements Discussion And Analysis
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB(7,147,000) (2013:
RMB72,255,000).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND ACQUISITION

The Group did not have any significant investment and acquisition during
the year ended 31 December 2014,

CHANGES IN THE GROUP STRUCTURE
Please refer note 40 for our group structure.
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Current assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB13,363,000 (2013: RMB14,292,000), representing a decrease of
RMB929,000 compared with last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables by RMB2,491,000 and the increase in bank balance and
cash by RMB1,586,000.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had current liabilities of
approximately RMB70,944,000 (2013: RMB69,210,000), which
represented an increase of RMB1,734,000. The major changes were
repayment of bank borrowings RMB19,000,000 and increase in amount
due to a major shareholder by RMB19,554,000 during the year.

Finance and banking facilities
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances and cash of

approximately RMB4,096,000 (2013: RMB2,510,000), with no bank
borrowings (2013: RMB19,000,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had other borrowings of
approximately RMB11,000,000 (2013: RMB11,000,000).

Gearing ratio
The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 was 58.8% (2013:

122.0%), which was expressed as a percentage of the total bank and
other borrowings over the total assets.
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Managements Discussion And Analysis
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Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities of the Group during the year are set out in note 36.
Capital structure and financial resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
RMB52,248,000 (2013: RMB44,622,000). The Group’s operations and
investments were financed principally by its internal resources, other
borrowings and shareholders’ equity.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s income and expenses were mainly denominated in RMB.
Since the existing bank borrowings are repayable in RMB, there was no
material foreign exchange risk. The Group will review and monitor foreign
exchange risk from time to time and may enter into forward swap
contracts to hedge such risks where appropriate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 28 employees (2013: 72
employees). Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees in recognition and reward of their contribution. Other benefits
include contributions to retirement scheme.

An analysis of employees of the Group by their duties for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 is set out below:

Functions
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Headcount for the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—HLFEENAZ

2012 2013 2014

T——F —T = —E-mF

Sales and marketing HERTIBHE 5 7 6
Research & Development e 3 3 3
Production (including quality control) 4 (R I3EHE 22 4) 40 49 2
Finance and administration B 7% AT 25 10 13
Procurement R 1 3 4
74 72 28
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Managements Discussion And Analysis

ERE RN

STAFF QUARTERS

Workers and staff of the Group are provided with accommodation at
Yuyao City. The Directors confirm that, apart from the above
accommodation, there was no other housing benefit provided by the
Group to its staff.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group has not experienced any significant labour disputes or strikes
which have led to the disruption of its normal business operation. The
Directors consider that the Group maintains good relationship with its
employees.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
are set out on page 18 to page 20.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, Supervisors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Company are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROSPECTS

The Group is waiting for emergence of profitable opportunities before
expanding current operation. Active sourcing is done to fit our production
advantages to current market situation.
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Corpgrate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Code (effective from 1 April 2012) as stated in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules except the following deviations (Code Provisions A.2.1 and
E.1.2):

Mr. Zhu Guo An is the Chairman of the board of directors. The Company
has no such title as the chief executive officer and the daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive directors as
well as the senior management. The Board is of the view that although
there is no chief executive officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced
individuals and meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting the
operations of the Company.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 5.05A and 5.06 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 3 independent non-executive directors. The
Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company still considers all
the existing independent non-executive directors to be independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the
management of the Company are committed to establishing good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of
high standard of business ethics and corporate governance practices
has always been one of the Group’s goals. The Company believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the
GEM Listing Rules. Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance
the Group’s internal controls and procedures in light of changes in
regulations and developments in best practices. To us, maintaining high
standards of corporate governance practices is not just complying with
the provisions but also the intent of the regulations to enhance corporate
performance and accountability.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the code provisions of
the CG Code throughout the year, except where otherwise stated.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by Directors of the
Group as set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:

Executive Directors : Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong

Non-Executive Directors : Mr. Jiang Guo Ping
Mr. Zheng Xin
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan

Independent Non-Executive : Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Directors Mr. Jiang Mei Yin
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai

Each independent non-executive director has given an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the Company
considers them to be independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprises nine members, including
three executive directors, three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs”). Each of the members
possesses sufficient experience and qualification which enable them to
discharge their duties properly.

The chairman is responsible for the formulation and review of the Group’s
overall development strategies. The daily operation is delegated to the
executive directors and senior management. None of the INEDs is
interested in the business of the Group and their independence has to be
confirmed upon appointment or reappointment. Currently, there is no
financial, business, family or other relevant material relationship among
the existing directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, all the directors
shall be elected at the general meeting of the shareholders and the term
of office shall be one year, renewable upon reappointment or re-election.

Board meetings are conducted on a periodic basis and with reference to
the operation needs. During the year, the board held 4 meetings and the
attendance of the directors is set out on page 12.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, a total of 4 Board
meetings, 1 annual general meeting (“2013 AGM”) and O extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) were held and the attendance of each director
is set out as follows:

Number of meetings attended

ERHETE

REE-ZT—NF+-_A=Z+—BILHEFE
W ARBEHBITIREFTEEE  1RARR
BERE(ZZ—=FRRBFAEG]) RORK
REAE((RERFHIAE])  BUEEZHE
BRI

in the year ended 31 December 2014 Regular

REZE-Z-ME+-A=1+-H Board

EFEERHEEERE meetings 2013 AGM EGM

T —B-=F

Name of director EEi2 EXEEE RRBEFAE REBHXAE
Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) FRREE(FE) 4/4 1/1 0/0
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang TEREE 4/4 11 0/0
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong RELGE 4/4 1/1 0/0
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping ZETEE 4/4 1/1 0/0
Mr. Zheng Xin 3 E 4/4 1/1 0/0
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan FEREE 4/4 1/1 0/0
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie AelErE 4/4 1/1 0/0
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin ZEHEE 4/4 11 0/0
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BERZREE 4/4 1/1 0/0

The chairman attended 2013 AGM to answer questions and collect views
of shareholders. All directors, company secretary and the auditors had
attended the 2013 AGM to answer questions at the meeting.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and be
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, authorising the development
plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating performance;
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system; supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group; and setting the
Group’s values and standards. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group to management.
The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure
that they accommodate the needs of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. At least
7 days’ notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors and they
can include matters for discussion in the agenda as they think fit. The
agenda accompanying Board papers are sent to all directors at least 3
days before the date of every Board meeting in order to allow sufficient
time for the directors to review the documents.

Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to all directors for their
perusal and comments prior to confirmation of the minutes. The Board
also ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary
information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge
its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled
to have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhu Guo An (“Mr. Zhu”) is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Zhu is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and policy making of the
Group.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monitored by the executive directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no chief executive officer,
the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals and meet from time to
time to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term
which may be extended as each and the Company may agree.

The current articles of association of the Company provide that subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of directors as from time to time
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation and that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every 3 years.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in continuous
professional development programmes such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A
record of the training received by the respective directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year ended
31 December 2014 is summarized below:

HXER

RBBEECHEEREER  ARFREESH
f*HF@ZF‘u BUNBERREHRE 2 MBI
cERERNTALERESEERS
Géﬁh%%)\iﬁﬁ;@%Z’}\\ﬁBFﬁ%@ LIRS
EXEG ARMBEREEFNRE ZANBLIREE

EEMEXZIBIREHARRRARAMERE &
BH
BE_Z-OF+-_A=+—HLFE BE=

ﬁﬂi"iﬁ*ﬂIZTIE‘J FCERBER T -

Attending seminar(s)/

programme(s)/conference(s) HEBBEEBLR
relevant to the business or EERECEHE
directors’ duties TE gEZER
Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) AR (EE) 4
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang TEREA 4
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong KREKRTE 4
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping E=HFEA 4
Mr. Zheng Xin BT 4
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan LR S v
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BRI v
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin %%ﬂ%‘ai v
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai et TR A& v
All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous ’i%ﬁ%é%ﬂ?% IFEEERRECEEN  ARE
professional development and are committed to participating any suitable 2B {F(A] &2 353 - AR M BN S 2 585
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. &S TR
AUDIT COMMITTEE EZEES

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
3 independent non-executive directors, who have reviewed the annual
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014. All of
them have appropriate professional qualifications and/or accounting and/
or related financial management expertise. Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie, is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Our Audit Committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality
of internal control and ensuring that the financial performance of the
Company is properly measured and reported on, receiving and reviewing
reports from management and the auditors relating to the annual and
interim accounts, and monitoring the accounting and internal control
system in use throughout the Group. The Audit Committee held 4
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014.

AprlzERZBe([EREBE ) A3MEL
FHRITEFEK  RECEHMARRBE_Z
—MOET A=+ BILFEZEFEE - KE
BHEEES i%éff&&/%ﬁﬁ&/‘x*ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%
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According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least 4 times a year. 4 meetings were held for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

AREH-RE-FT-MEF-A=T
B BREAGDSITARGH - SHKA
MR MBI -

RIERBRESE ERZESEFAEPET
g

Number of meetings REZ-Z—F

attended in the +ZH=+—-HI
Name of members of EZERESE financial year ended BREER
Audit Committee HEHE 31 December 2014 HESBERE
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman) RIS (/) 4/4
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin EEREE 4/4
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BEHZR LA 4/4

At the meetings held during the year, in performing its duties in
accordance with its terms of reference, the work performed by the Audit
Committee included:

(@ review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(b)  recommendation to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of the external Auditor and approval of their
remuneration;

(c)  determination of the nature and scope of the audit; and

(d)  review the financial statements for the relevant periods.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3
independent non-executive directors. Mr. Jiang Mei Yin is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available at the Company’s website and on
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the chairman of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive directors, making recommendation to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee has adopted the
approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code provisions to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

Meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a
year. 1 meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2014.
During the meeting, remuneration of the directors have been discussed
and no change has been proposed to the remuneration policy and the
directors’ remuneration.
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The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

BN B ZHFEBREIINT

REBEZE-ZF—0OF

Number of meetings

attended in the +=ZHA=+—H1L
Name of members of financial year ended BMREER
Remuneration Committee FHNZEGRERR 31 December 2014 HEE R
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (Chairman) %%ﬂ%f‘ﬁi( EE) 11
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BERESR ST A 11
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BRI 5 & 11

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3 independent non-
executive directors. Mr. Lu Xiang Tai is currently the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available at the Company’s website and on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board at least once a year, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
board members (select or make recommendations to the board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships), assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors, making
recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer; and
reporting to the board on its decisions or recommendations, unless there
are legal or regulatory restrictions.

Meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year.
1 meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2014. Issues
concerning the structure, size and composition of the board of directors
were discussed and no change has been proposed to the structure, size
and composition.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

REZEE
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Number of meetings REBEZE-ZT—0F

attended in the +=ZA=+—H1

Name of members of financial year ended HHREER
Nomination Committee REZEEREHR 31 December 2014 HESERE
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (Chairman) BERRE A (EE) 1/1
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin EXREE 11
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie PRI S A 1/1
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial position and
prospects of the business of the Company so as to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report) for preparing the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders of
the Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
risk management procedures and for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. The Board has conducted a review of, and is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the
Group.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of business objective. The
system includes a defined management structure with segregation of
duties and a cash management system such as monthly reconciliation of
bank accounts.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal
controls and is of the opinion that the resources for and qualifications of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and on its
own observations, the Board is satisfied with present internal controls of
the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for the appointment
of the external auditors, including the engagement of non-auditing tasks
and fees. During the year under review, the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was audited by KTC Partners CPA
Limited and the fees paid for the audit of the Group’s financial statements
amounted to RMB436,000.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (“Mr. Tsao”) was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 24 November 2008. The biographical details of Mr.
Tsao are set out under the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management”.

According to the newly introduced Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules,
Mr. Tsao has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company places great emphasis on its relationship and
communication with investors. The Company has numerous
communication channels, such as press conference and seminars, to
communicate with the media, analysts and fund managers. Designated
senior management staff holds dialogue with analysts, fund managers
and investors, who are also arranged to visit the Company and
investment projects from time to time, so as to keep them abreast of the
Group’s business and latest developments. In addition, investors can
also visit the Company’s website at www.wanhaoholdings.com for the
most updated information and the status of the business development of
the Group.

The Company has made no change to the constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2014. Investors can obtain the latest
constitutional documents of the Company from the Company’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management recognise the responsibility of
safeguarding the interest of shareholders of the Company and provide
highly transparent and real-time information on the Company so as to
keep the shareholders and investors abreast of the Company’s position
and help them to make the best investment decision. The Company
believes that maintaining good and effective communication with
shareholders can facilitate the shareholders’ understanding of the
business performance and strategies of the Group. The Board and senior
management also recognise the responsibility of safeguarding the interest
of shareholders of the Company. In order to safeguard the shareholders’
interest, the Company reports its financial and operating performance to
shareholders through annual reports, interim reports and quarterly
reports. Shareholders of the Company can also obtain information of the
Group in time through annual reports, interim reports, quarterly reports,
announcements, circulars, press releases and the Company’s website
www.wanhaoholdings.com.

The annual general meetings are an appropriate forum for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Shareholders can
raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance and
future development of the Group at annual general meetings.
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Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management

55 EELNEHNERAES

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of 9 Directors including 3 executive
Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Guo An (78 B %), aged 58, was appointed as the chairman of
the Board, an executive director, compliance officer and authorized
representative of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zhu has been the
executive director of Wanli since April 2011. Mr. Zhu was the chairman of
Wanli (formerly known as #7/L & B 1%z R A 7 (Zhejiang Wanli Holding
Group Inc*) and Rk & 2 EFR AR QA (Yuyao Wanli Construction
Company Limited*) from January 1996 to April 2011. He has over 40
years of experience in management, operation and project development
in large property development companies in the PRC. Mr. Zhu is
responsible for the implementation of the objectives, policies and
strategies as well as day-to-day management and operations of Wanli
and its subsidiaries. He obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering
from Bl i & K £ (China University of Geoscience) in 2008 and has
become a senior economist in 2008. He is a brother of Mr. Zhu Guo Dan.

Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (JT £8 58), aged 53, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Qi has been the general
manager of Rk T g ZEEHNE 5B A 7 (Yuyao Commercial Group
Company Limited* (“Yuyao”) since June 1996. Yuyao is beneficially
owned as to 90% by Mr. Qi and as to 10% by Madam Ma Xia Jun (&
&) (wife of Mr. Qi), and is principally engaged in import and export
trading.

Mr. Zhu Chun Rong (% & &), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zhu
has been appointed as the finance manager of Wanli (formerly known as
AT &8 BB R AR (Zhejiang Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and Rk
BEEZBER QA (Yuyao Wanli Construction Company Limited*)) since
January 2007. He obtained his bachelor degree in applied mathematics
from Sichuan University (F9)I[X22) in 1991.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping (), aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Jiang has been
appointed as the deputy general manager of Wanli (formerly known as J#
TEEBIERRARR AR (Zhejiang Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and &k &
B ZE X ER A A (Yuyao Wanli Construction Company Limited*) since
February 2000. He obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering from
FR B3 K22 (China University of Geoscience) in 2008.
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Mr. Zheng Xin (£§%F), aged 37, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zheng has been appointed as a
director of Wanli (formerly known as #7T & £ 42 % G R A & (Zhejiang
Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and 7 k1 & B 2% F R 2 7] (Yuyao Wanli
Construction Company Limited*)) since January 2007. Between December
2000 to January 2007, he was an operating general manager of Wanli. He
obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering from /B B /& A £ (China
University of Geoscience) in 2010.

Mr. Zhu Guo Dan (%), aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zhu has been appointed
as a general manager of Wanli (formerly known as J#1)T & BIE AR A
&) (Zhejiang Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and sk & B2 X AR A 7
(Yuyao Wanli Construction Company Limited*)) since January 2007.
Between November 1999 to January 2007, he was a supervisor of Wanli.
He has over 30 years of experience in civil work in construction
companies in the PRC. He obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering
from B # & KX £ (China University of Geoscience) in 2008. He is a
brother of Mr. Zhu Guo An.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (38#I%#), aged 43, Mr. Kwok is currently the
senior manager of a sole proprietor in Hong Kong from July 2014. He has
also been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Siberian Mining Group Company Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), since February 2014. He has previously appointed as
financial controller, company secretary and authorised representative of
Forebase International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwok is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. He holds a Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master
of Corporate Governance Degree from the Open University of Hong Kong
and a Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University).

Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (%34R), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 28 June 2013. He is currently
the Head of Customer Service Center of Yuyao Power Supply Bureau (7
Pk E ). Mr. Jiang graduated from Hangzhou Electric Power Staff
Economy Management School (171 /1 T 77 B T 48 7% & 12 B2 4%) and has
over 30 years of working experience in electricity transmission and
distribution line construction, maintenance and operation.

Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management
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55 EELNEHNERAES

Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (FE %t 2%), aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Lu has
been working as a deputy general manager and director of finance
department of # )T ZE i 79 B B IR 2 7] (Zhejiang Hualian Commercial
Building Company Limited*) since February 1998. He graduated from #7
M B 2 PR (Hangzhou College of Commerce) majoring in corporate
management in 1997.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Mao Lihong, aged 33, is a Supervisor and does not hold any other
position in the Group. She graduated from Zhejiang University of
Technology in 2006. She holds a bachelor’s degree in Management
Sciences and also holds the title of Engineer. She is currently the
assistant to the chairman of Wan Li Group. She has over 7 years of
working experience in management and administration.

Ms. Shi Weina, aged 43, is a Supervisor and does not hold any other
position in the Group. She graduated from Tianjin University, and is
currently the Deputy General Manager of & B #5 i% 62 B B4 7% 2 7). She
has over 10 years of working experience in Finance.

Mr. Li Yu Hua, aged 57, is a Supervisor and does not hold any other
position in the Group. He is currently the executive general manager of
WanLi Holding Group (£ 242%%®) and general manager of Zhejiang
WanLi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd (1)1 8 2 Fit ZEF AR A 7).
Mr. Li graduated from Tianjin University, specialising in civil engineering
and has over 40 years of working experience in finance, construction and
management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Company Secretary

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho, aged 50, is the financial controller of the Group. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Warwick. He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and member of Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, Australasian Institute of Banking &
Finance plus Bankers’ Institute of New Zealand. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Tsao was the Qualified Accountant for a listed company,
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsao joined the
Group in November 2008 and has over 20 years’ experience in auditing,
finance and company secretary.
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Re ort of the Directors
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are the design, manufacture and
sale of intelligent controller systems for various consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and the assembly of mobile phones. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segments
is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 29 to page 30.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2014.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 33. The
Company has no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2014.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group during the year are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company and no restriction against such rights under
the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which will oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 107.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or agreed to be
granted by the Company to any of its Directors, Supervisors or
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman)

Mr. Qi Yong Qiang

Mr. Zhu Chun Rong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping

Mr. Zheng Xin

Mr. Zhu Guo Dan

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Mr. Jiang Mei Yin

Mr. Lu Xiang Tai

Supervisors

Mrs. Mao Lihong

Mrs. Shi Weina

Mr. Li Yu Hua

Members of the audit committee
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Mei Yin
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai
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Members of the remuneration committee

Mr. Jiang Mei Yin (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Members of the nomination committee

Mr. Lu Xiang Tai (Chairman)
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

In accordance with Articles 89 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors and Supervisors appointed by the Board since
last shareholders’ annual general meeting shall be elected at the coming
shareholders’ general meeting for a term of three years. A director or
supervisor may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiration
of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on page 18 to page 20.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of one year from his/her date of
appointment as a Director or, as the case may be, as a Supervisor and
thereafter subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or Supervisors who are proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts disclosed
above, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 31 December 2014, the interests and long positions of each Director,
Chief Executive and Supervisor of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing
by directors as referred to in Rules 5.40 to 5.58 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of RMB0.10 each of the Company as at 31 December
2014:

Long positions in shares

EE IETRAEBREEREAQFAR
ek £

N_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H ARAZESF "
FTETRAEBREERAARQG REMAEAE(F
= RFES LB KRG ([FHRIBEE ) EXVED)
1D - MBI REST  BEAREIRIEE
R BB &G 352 16 R E BT B M ERMATR
RS MR RBEBHARIIBERA
RIBIERES LR AER ETHRA D E
540 £ 5.58 KTl E BHITR HHREIZES A
GARNFIRERATHER TN

RZF-—ME+-A=+—BARQASHEEA
R 0.10TM & @ :

RIHEFRE

Approximate

percentage of
shareholding

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Director/ held in same shareholding in
Chief Executive/ Domestic Shares of RMB0.10 each class of the registered
Supervisor (the “Domestic Shares”) held Nature of interest securities capital
EE TETH FEEREEARE010TH 1EEERIE S EEMER
IN-V4 & 33 RER(TREREAE ERitg BRERES L BRRRE 2
Mr. Zhu Guo An 204,610,230 Domestic Shares (note 2)  Interest of controlled 55.30% 40.92%
FERELE 204,610,230 i A &% (FHEE2) Corporation (note 1)

i EE R (1)
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan 102,289,770 Domestic Shares (note 2)  Interest of controlled 27.65% 20.46%
AEKSE 102,289,770 R M E i (i 2) corporation (note 1)

i EE R (1)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang 63,100,000 Domestic Shares (note 2) Beneficial owner 17.05% 12.62%

TEREE 63,100,000 B A& R (RT3 2) ERBERA
Notes:
(1) Wan Li Group Company Limited (a joint stock limited company incorporated in the

PRC) is beneficially owed as to 66.67% by Mr. Zhu Guo An and as to 33.33% by Mr.
Zhu Guo Dan and as such, Mr. Zhu Guo An and Mr. Zhu Guo Dan are deemed to be
interested in the 204,610,230 Shares and 102,289,770 Shares respectively.

2) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each, in the registered capital of the
Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in Renminbi.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors,
Chief Executives and Supervisors (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO).
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Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement enabling the Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

According to the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
section 336 of the SFO, as at 31 December 2014, the Company had
been notified the following substantial shareholders’ were interested in
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors.

Bk £ XXt E S -

RAFE R EMERE - ARF

FEMB AR ERI LAY - BEAARE
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BRETMER R-T-—OF+-A=+—
Ei ARREAGATEIERREEARF D

TTRARE% A EHERR - L am I |t A EXC
Pﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% TETRABMERNERNA

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

same class the registered
Name of shareholder Number of shares held Nature of interest of securities capital
EEERIE S HEmER
RREEEB FiEROHA EatE BARRBESL BAKKRBESL
Wan Li Group Company 306,900,000 Domestic Beneficial owner 82.95% 61.38%
Limited Shares (note 2) EmEAA
BEREEREBRHBRLR 306,900,000 i P& A% (Ff5E2)
Zhu Guo An 204,610,230 Domestic Interest of controlled 55.30% 40.92%
ety Shares (note 2) corporation
204,610,230 R W& R (Ff5E2) R EE RS
Zhu Guo Dan 102,289,770 Domestic Interest of controlled 27.65% 20.46%
EEN Shares (note 2) corporation
102,289,770l A& % (i1 2) R EE R
Qi Yong Qiang 63,100,000 Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 17.05% 12.62%
TTER 63,100,000 fx A1 & % EwEEA
Martin Currie China 14,245,000 H Shares (note 1) Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
Hedge Fund Limited 14,245,000 B H AR 7 (BT&E1) REKR
Martin Currie Investment 14,245,000 H shares (note 1) Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%

Management Limited

Note:

14,245,000 i H B (KI5E1)

REKE

ML

(1) “H Share(s)” represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of RMB0.10
each in the registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars. Save as disclosed above, as at 31
December 2014, the Directors are not aware of any person, not being a Director, Chief
Executive or Supervisor, have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

2) Wan Li Group Company Limited (a joint stock limited company incorporated in the
PRC) is beneficially owed as to 66.67% by Mr. Zhu Guo An and as to 33.33% by Mr.
Zhu Guo Dan and as such, Mr. Zhu Guo An and Mr. Zhu Guo Dan are deemed to be
interested in the 204,610,230 Shares and 102,289,770 Shares respectively.

(1)
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*EH;? 7 M HEE R0 5 336 1577 & 8 B r i A By (E (] 1
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 23.79%
— five largest customers combined 47.04%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 17.24%
— five largest suppliers combined 43.20%

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in
Appendix 15 Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group, are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business that directly or indirectly competes with the
business of the Group or has any other conflicts of interest.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year have been audited by KTC Partners
CPA Limited, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Guo An
Chairman

Ningbo, The PRC, 25 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Fofs @3t ER F R A IR 8

Tel &3: (852) 2314 7999

Fax 1% A:(852) 2110 9498

E-mail & F# 45: info@ktccpa.com.hk

Room 801 & 802A, 8/F., Tower 2, South Seas Centre,

75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB IR IV E R R HE TSI F P oo 28 8801 R 802AF

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ningbo
WanHao Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 106, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN 2B E S

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group incurred
a consolidated loss attributable for the owners of the Company of
approximately RMB7,147,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014,
and had consolidated net current liabilities of approximately
RMB57,581,000 and a capital deficiency of approximately
RMB52,248,000 as at 31 December 2014. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chow Yiu Wah Joseph

Practising Certificate Number: PO4686

Hong Kong
25 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

fre B N E A 2 E R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥ET T ARETT
Revenue Ik &= 10 43,787 47,039
Cost of sales SHE A (41,144) (48,307)
Gross profit (loss) ERHE (FEB) 2,643 (1,268)
Other income EH g A 10 988 711
Impairment loss recognised in respect hEL b B UG BR 3k K2
of other receivables and B TR IR R
paid in advances PEREN S = (2,360)
Reversal of trade payables B EMNE FRER 27 - 47,325
Reversal of other payables and accruals (8] £ fib JfE (< BR 7% &2 fE =1 & FB 28 = 44,658
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (9) (464)
Written off of trade receivables MEE W E FER - (2,842)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary —MEM B A R EEE E R EE 42 (125) -
Administrative expenses TIREH (10,370) (11,318)
Finance costs BB A 12 (750) 912)
(Loss) profit before taxation BB AT (B 1) BRI (7,623) 73,530
Income tax expense Frig®if 13 (21) -
(Loss) profit for the year FR(ER) RN 14 (7,644) 73,530
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

fre B N E A 2 E

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z-—NE+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E2-mF —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T AREETIT
Other comprehensive income Hap2mEmKBA
Items that may be reclassified HENEHI»EEREZ
subsequently to profit or loss: ER :
Exchange differences arising on BHEGINETSE £ RIE
translation of foreign operations =xa 19 15
Total other comprehensive income FREMEZEKALLE
for the year 19 15
Total comprehensive (expenses) Frz2m (k) WAL
income for the year (7,625) 73,545
(Loss) income for the year RTATEEER (BE)
attributable to: WA
Owners of the Company ViNINEIEZZE N (7,147) 72,255
Non-controlling interests VTR M 2 (497) 1,275
(7,644) 73,530
Total comprehensive (expenses) DTALTESA2EFEX)
income attributable to: DON -t
Owners of the Company PN/NEIE 2 =N (7,128) 72,270
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (497) 1,275
(7,625) 73,545
(Loss) earnings per share SR (EE)BF
(RMB’ cents) (AR®2) 18
Basic YN (1.43) 14.45
Diluted e N/A 738 A N/A 7 F
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re ISR

At 31 Deoember 2014
RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —FE—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hsx AR¥T T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Plant and equipment T I 5% 19 181 4,845
Investment properties wWEYE 20 1,037 1,094
Prepaid lease payment TEfEEFRIE 21 4,115 4,357
5,333 10,296
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories TE 22 2,325 2,549
Prepaid lease payment BNHEERIE 21 242 242
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 23 6,008 5,092
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - Ze Rk
other receivables H b B BER R 24 156 2,647
Tax recoverable ATk eI FTE 36 -
Amount due from a related company FEUN — B RgE AN B A 25 = 150
Paid in advances BERTENFIA 500 1,102
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 26 4,096 2,510
13,363 14,292
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FEE SRR 27 6,072 3,813
Other payables and accruals HigEMAIER N ETER 28 8,535 8,999
Receipt in advances TEUM IR 1,880 2,490
Amount due to a director JEN—REEZ=FE 29 754 759
Amount due to a major shareholder Bt — R E B R FRIA 30 38,263 18,709
Dividends payables FERT AR B 31 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings HiugEs 32 11,000 11,000
Bank borrowings RITIEE 33 - 19,000
70,944 69,210
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (57,581) (54,918)
NET LIABILITIES FEE (52,248) (44,622)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re ISR

At 31 Deoember 2014
RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—2-mE -—T-=4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hsx AR¥T T AREEF T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRK#E
Share capital RN 34 50,000 50,000
Reserves G (102,881) (95,753)
Equity attributable to owners KAREBAELESR
of the Company (52,881) (45,753)
Non-controlling interests FEPEAL i 2 633 1,131
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY BEARE A (52,248) (44,622)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 106 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2015 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Zhu Guo An
HEZ
Director

EF
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Consgli\cjajed Statement of Changes in Equity
LA B &

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE-F-mF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERREEAEL
Statutory Non-
Share Capital Other surplus  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
EERS
BA ERfGE HitE NEE ERGRE ZitEE M FERER FoH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETR
(Note 39c() ~ (Note 39c(ii)  (Note 39cfii)
(MzE39cl)  (HisEagefi)) (B 39ci)
At 1 January 2013 RZF-=§—A-H 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 - (490,093) (118,023) (144) (118,167)
Total comprehensive income FRZENNESR
for the year - - - - 15 72,255 72,270 1,275 73,545
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZF
+-A=1+—H 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 15 (417,838) (45,753) 1,131 (44,622)
Total comprehensive income FRZEHA(BL)
(expenses) for the year feke) - - - - 19 (7,147) (7,128) (497) (7,625)
Eliminated on deregistration of —FMEARRH
a subsidiary (Note 42) HmE e (a2) - - - - - - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2014 RZB-mF
+=ZA=t+-A 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 34 (424,985) (52,881) 633 (52,248)
NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 33
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN AN = —1
meaiiemEeR
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z—mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
(Loss) profit before taxation MeFi AT (B518 ) i (7,623) 73,530
Adjustments for: ERTHIEE FHE -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment HisTa M E I 242 242
Bank interest income RITH B U A () (7)
Depreciation of plant and equipment B KR T E 2,408 3,337
Depreciation of investment properties WEYERE 57 58
Finance costs A& A A 750 912
Inventories directly written off FEEEMH = 2,795
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEBE & RENEIE 53 -
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary —MEM BRI EEE SRR EE 125 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BB 5L BN B ZRIE R A
in respect of paid in advance IE R (28) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLE A REURBR 3R R BAS TR 5UE
other receivables and paid in advance THERAREE B = 2,360
Reversal of trade payables BB SR = (47,325)
Reversal of other payables P[] L Ath A5 BR 5K - (44,658)
Waiver of trade and other payables NEE 5 REMEMER (158) (109)
Written off of plant and equipment WS R = N R A 2,164 104
Written off of trade receivables HIEFE U B 5 AR = 2,842
Operating cash flows before movements EELESHBHANEERS
in working capital RE (2,013) (5,915)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD (Em) 218 (924)
Increase in trade receivables FEU B 5 BR 5K 0 (961) (4,287)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, TEfTFRIE -~ e R E AL EIER K
deposits and other receivables S (BE ) 2,491 (2,233)
Decrease in paid in advances B TENFRIER D 625 111
Increase in trade payables FENTEE S BRFIE N 2,336 2,328
(Decrease) increase in other payables HE TR ERE A
and accruals CRi) #hn (464) 3,235
(Decrease) increase in receipt in advances FE Uk ERIE CRi ) 18 hn (607) 1,745
Cash generated from (used in) operations BEERFEB(FFA)RE 1,625 (5,940)
Income tax expense FrisfifFAx (57) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) REXKB (A RS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FEE 1,568 (5,940)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\/T\/\fﬁi//ul%?%

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREBTFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Repayments from (advance to) a related RE—FHBAEARINER
company M—REEEATBR 150 (150)
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE L&E (1,247) (3,614)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment  HERE & & EHIFTEIE 1,286 -
Interest received BF B 3 7
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) BREZTERE (A RS BHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 192 (8,757)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Advance from a director TEH— BB EEL 6 332
Advance from (repayments to) a major KB (BR) —BEEREDN
shareholder R 19,554 (14,332)
New bank borrowings raised LR ITEE 17,000 19,000
New other borrowing raised it EHMmEE = 1,500
Repayments of bank borrowings BEETIER (36,000) -
Interest paid EAHFLE (750) (912)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED METE (FTH) TSRS FH
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (190) 5,588
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH HeRBESEEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in R ) FH8E 1,570 (4,109)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENNRERRESSEER
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,510 6,604
Effect of foreign exchanges rate changes [EREH)T L 16 15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNRER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, Re%EEER
represented by bank balances and cash EERITHE R IR & 4,096 2,510
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
T e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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—E-ME+-A=+—HIEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ningbo WanHao Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
joint stock limited liability company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BRMB”). Other than the subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong
whose functional currency is United States Dollar (“USD”), the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) is RMB.

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and
sale of intelligent controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and the assembly of mobile phones in the
PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately RMB7,147,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014 and, as at that date, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB57,581,000 and a capital deficiency
of approximately RMB52,248,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liability in the
normal course of business. Nevertheless, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for the next twelve months from 31
December 2014 on the basis that:

(i) the Directors anticipate that the Group will generate positive
cash flows from its future operations;

(i)  a major shareholder of the Company has committed to
provide continuing support to enable the Group to operate as
a going concern and meet its liabilities as they fall due for the
foreseeable future;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—

2.

T-mF+=A=t—BILEE
BASIS OF PREPARATION — Continued

(i)  to raise funds by way of issuing additional equity or debt
securities; and

(iv)  to negotiate with certain bankers to obtain additional banking
facilities, if necessary.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets as current assets.
The effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the
following amendments to HKFRS and a new Interpretation:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

mAEE — &
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of an
investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to
measure its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in its
consolidated and separate financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment
entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based on
the criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1 January 2014), the
application of the amendments has had no impact on disclosures
or the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation
and settlement”.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the Group
does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify
for offset, the application of the amendments has had no impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement
to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) to which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives had been allocated when there has been no impairment
or reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is
measured at fair value less costs of disposal. These new
disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and
valuation techniques used which are in line with the disclosure
required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material impact
on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief
form the requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument is novated under
certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any
change to the fair value of the derivative designated as a hedging
instrument arising from the novation should be included in the
assessment and measurement of hedge effectiveness.

The amendment have been applied retrospectively. As the Group
does not have any derivatives that are subject to novation, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies for the first time in
the current year. HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 addresses the issue as to when
to recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed by a government. The
Interpretation defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating event
that gives rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment
of the levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be accounted
for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor
the going concern basis of financial statements preparation implies
that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be
triggered by operating in a future period.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The application
of this Interpretation has had no material impact on the disclosures
or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRs that have been Issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers®

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions

P AT R AR ST BB B RS SRk 2
B ((EB0BREE ) — &

SREMERRERNIHITREETE
B EIRE R

AREE Y EREFRA T I 2 B/MERRE
BEF ] RG] BB M B IRE LR :

EANBREEANSOR SMTA
ERUBRLLE Y EEEEER
ESNBREENE 165 RATSLMAKGES

FEAMBREENE R KWBAREBREA

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

of interests in Joint Operations®
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions*

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
Between an Investor and its

(BETE) ELSi
BEGHERF16R BEURARER
BEGHERF 385 Bhre

(BRI A)
BRGENE 169
BAGREAR4R

BE  THEMNE®

Associate or Joint Venture®
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle*
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier
application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier
application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities in the
financial statements.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Continued

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have a significant impact on the amounts reported in respect
of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the
Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of “vesting
condition” and“market condition”, and (ii) add definitions for
“performance condition” and “service condition” which were
previously included within the definition of “vesting condition”. The
amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
— (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair
value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised
in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments have
“similar economic characteristics”; and (i) clarify that a reconciliation
of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets
should only be provided if the segment assets are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusion of HKFRS 13 clarify
that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure
short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at
their invoice amounts without discounting if the effect of discounting
is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into
account accumulated impairment losses.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
— Continued

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel service to a reporting entity is
a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting
entity should disclose as related party transactions the amounts
incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity
for the provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not
required. The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2010
— 2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2011 — 2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle includes
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not
apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes all
contracts that are within the scope of and accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9 even if those contracts do
not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities
within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may
be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property
must determine whether:

(@ the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of HKAS 40; and

(b)  the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2011 — 2013 Cycle
— Continued

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRS
2011 — 2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle includes
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to clarify
whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in a
transferred asset for the purpose of disclosures required in relation
to transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting disclosures
(introduced in the amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities issued in
December 2011 and effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013) are not explicitly required for all interim periods.
However, the disclosures may need to be included in condensed
interim financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality corporate
bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-employment
benefits should be issued in the same currency as the benefits to
be paid. These amendments would result in the depth of the
market for high quality corporate bonds being assessed at currency
level. The amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented in the financial statements in which
the amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising
should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning of that
period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements relating to
information required by HKAS 34 that is presented elsewhere within
the interim financial report but outside the interim financial
statements. The amendments require that such information be
incorporated by way of cross-reference from the interim financial
statements to the other part of the interim financial report that is
available to users on the same terms and the same time as the
interim financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
TR

3.

FERAHI REETEBMBRESE
ATEEMBREELEA]) — &

[—F——FE-F-=FEMIES
RIBS RS R 2 FEBOE ] —

EEEH BRI ——F2_FT—=F
BH 2 BB BRELER 2 FEBE ] T
B SR T EEAE B 2 REE XL
EMBREBRMNENTE -

[ZTE2E-—ZF22Z2-NFEHEER
Eﬂ%#ﬁ%@iﬁﬂzﬁgﬂiﬂj

[TZ——FE-T-NFERZEFEBHHE
SENZFESE | BRYREEEM
BMEEN 2 ZBIER] > BT -

BERMBHMEEAETIR(EFTAR) 255
EoIBERBENNEEBBTELRE
ES(IAHEEBBRERZEEMNS)

7% S PG AP HA A R X A AR e B SR 8
BECER-Z——F T+ _ARBAN_-F
—=F-A-BRZEAKRZBMERZ
BRI BRELERIZE 7R (EETA) [KE —
EHMEERTHBRETHEE]SIAN) - R
- HEAFHAGAT A HRE - A
BRBRBGRTENEMAT Y EHE ]

BB ERE 195 (BETA) BB EE

AIESH (ARMETRREETN 2R E) &
REETZNEANER EHEIT  ZE
B gEREEmTHcEE ARG
FH2TIHRE « ZEEFT R ERERERT
2GR 2Y| &P L E A H 1 e e
R o B 5l B2 AT ] 4] 25 58 28 e 7 5% HA Fa)
MPRE BN HERR ©

w

EREGHEAEMRBITRNEEERE

BEFEREMFESN P HHBRERN
Hp B ERN P M B RRIN2IERZ

BE - REEITBLBRERKS Hﬁﬁﬁ‘&
BRARZXXEIAATABAT PR BEREH
i &R 2> (4% B2 HA B 745 ¥ 3R A R -2 1R K e B
RRETEAE) -



Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
fr A BT IR AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2012 — 2014 Cycle
— Continued

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Basis of consolidation — Continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
palance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

statement of financial position at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods and scrap materials are recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating lease
is described in the accounting policy below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land held for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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T-mEt- A=+ AR
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Leasing — Continued
Leasehold land held for own use — Continued

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation

Current tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax — Continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the category; loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, amount due from a related company and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivable where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

EXEHEE - &
ERMTIA - &
EHEE

%mﬁﬁé"*ﬁﬁaﬁiﬁ%ﬂ B e R
c AR BEDEARERMEEZIEE &
EE’] WRNFHERKEE - IBNALER
TREENSREERR S HEERR
RILER - UEBHTABEEHEFTERRD
SRASEPIHTHRRARXNEENS

BB F%

ERFEEDNFEBB TR Z #HK AR
BRERAMES N BRAZITE - BEA
KNEEBTAZRRERFY  REWE
HiR) (W & 08) S b FT BRI WA (BIERT
BEMSBIRA BEREFE - XHEA R
HipyaERITRAKE D 2 BRERE) B
ST IR ZE RV PR Z REFEZ FIE

REBTAMES @ MERATIRERHN X
Q’Eﬁgﬁvo

B R ENKIR

B R R RIS S BT 5 B R E A E
EYT%;IH*WEEEE’J?EMEimEéF"
AEEUER (BEREE SRR e
&E@JEH&ZEEE - B —RRE R B FUR
ARSRITHE SR MRS ) 9 RA BR A FEZ
BB DR EAR

BRA B RERTEE M EHEAK RSN -
B WATHE R BRI R R -

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 57

BRERERBENBRAR



Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
T e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE

4.

58

—E-ME+-A=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables
and other receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Financial instruments — Continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables,
amount due to directors/major shareholder, dividends payables,
other borrowing and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
TR

BEAGHEEK — &

SWMIA-&

TRAERKRATA

DHEREH LR

£ EEBEITHOES RIRA T ALY EAET
SEK

ZHOANTREMBEREATA

MEENBEAERAGBIRAE -

RATA

AT AfEEMAERHRAEREBRDY
EREEFNGEZENAN - EEERIET
H AR T B4R B WP 1S 500R (FNBR E&%ﬁ‘ﬁ
B ) BERR,

At @A E
HeRABEERENE SRR  EE
RR - BNER TERRFIE - EN

BB HEERRITER  HEAER
LR ERAGE -

RS

ERMFEDNFESRAGE I BIHKRAR
BRERAMBELSNBRX 2% - BRA
XNEeRAGEZRAERFY  REWE
HiR) (W & 08) S b Ft R IR 7R (BRI
BEMSWIMA BEREFE - XHEA R
HipaERITRAKE D 2 BRERE) B
ST IR RV PR Z REDFEZ FIE

M B FSRER A R EERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

& B A5 R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—

4.

T-mF+=A=t—BILEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contributions.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise of cash on hand and at banks
with a maturity of three months or less.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person, (i) has control or joint control over the
Group; (i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) is a
member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimation (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessments of the going concern assumptions involve making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors consider that the Group has the ability to
continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively
may cast significant doubt about the going concern assumptions
are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued

Depreciation of plant and equipment and investment
properties and amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Plant and equipment and investment properties are depreciated
and prepaid lease payment is amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful lives and
residual values involve management’s estimation. The Group
assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of the plant
and equipment, investment properties and prepaid lease payment
and if the expectation differs from the original estimate, such
difference may impact the depreciation/amortisation in the year and
the estimate will be changed in the future period.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of plant and
equipment, investment properties and prepaid lease
payment

The impairment loss for plant and equipment, investment properties
and prepaid lease payment are recognised for the amounts by
which the carrying amounts exceed their recoverable amounts, in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
No impairment loss was recognised for the year (2013: Nil).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customers’ current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review
of their current credit information. The Group continuously monitors
collections and payments from its customers and maintains a
provision for estimated credit losses have historically been within
the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate level of
estimated credit losses. No impairment loss was recognised for the
year (2013: Nil).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

The policy for recognition of impairment loss of other receivables of
the Group is determined by the management based on the
evaluation of collectability and management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each receivables.
No impairment loss was recognised for the year (2013:
RMB2,360,000).

Allowance for inventories

The Directors review an aging analysis at the end of each reporting
period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slowing-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
Directors estimate the net realisable value for finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and make allowance for
obsoletes items. No impairment loss was recognised for the year
(2013: Nil).
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the

return to shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
palance.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

EXEpER

AEBEEEREERD AERAEEETH
ERERELERT  RBEEBE(CER

Niess 2 M9 E R RE

Bl o

RBEHERNERNBELZDOT ¢

2014 2013
—g-mE T -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Debits (Note (i) &% (ML) 50,017 49,468
Bank balances and cash RITEHESRNIR® (4,096) (2,510)
Net debt FETS 45,921 46,958
Capital deficiency (Note (ii)) BB AL (BEE (i) (52,881) (45,753)
Net debt to equity ratio B RS HE S R N/A* N/A*
TER* TER*
Notes: B -
(0] Debts comprise amount due to a director/a major shareholder, other U FAHOEEN —2EFE —AZBRRHE - A

borrowings and bank borrowings.

(i) Capital deficiency includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company.

o As the Group had a net deficiency in capital at 31 December 2014 and 2013,
the Group’s gearing ratio as at that date were not applicable. The directors of
the Company have given careful consideration on the measures currently
undertaken in respect of the Group’s liquidity position. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due based on the Group’s working capital sufficiency
plans.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B 75 L B B B
Categories of financial instruments TR AER
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Financial assets DRLEE
Loan and receivables B3R AR 3R
(including bank balances and cash) (BERTEHREIRS) 10,260 10,280
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BBEKATEZ 2R 68,506 65,987

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from a related
company, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables,
amount due to a director/a major shareholder and other and bank
borrowings are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and USD. The Group’s foreign
currency is mainly HKD. The Group has certain portion of the other
receivables, tax recoverable, bank balances and cash and other
payables that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency to which they relate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Currency risk — Continued

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
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TRINFARERREHROEREER
BE (ALY HRN BRI R AN
BHHE) ol ERER

2014 2013

—E-ImF —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREEF T

Assets BE 582 17
Liabilities afs (470) -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group do not expose any fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2014,

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable rate bank balances. The Group considered that the
effect of the cash flow interest rate is minimal and no sensitivity
analysis to interest rate risk is presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Credit risk

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
the failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 50% (2013: 31%)
and 97% (2013: 73%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and authorised banks in the PRC with high-credit
rating.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December 2014 as
its financial assets due within one year was less than its financial
liabilities due within one year. The Group had net current liabilities
of approximately RMB57,581,000 as at 31 December 2014. The
liquidity of the Group depends upon the positive cash flows
expected to be generated from the Group’s future operations and
successfully obtain new working capital in order to meet the
Group’s future working capital and financial requirements. Details of
which are set out in Note 2.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 8.

8.

TmE A=A

AND POLICIES — Continued

BHREBEENEREREE — &

Liquidity tables REBETK
Within 1 year
or on demand
and total
Carrying undiscounted
amounts cash flow
—FRPLERE
RARBERW
REE HWESHRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-0NF+=A=+—H
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost: RESER AR 2 b e E E -
Trade payables ENEBZER 6,072 6,072
Other payables and accruals Hipg R N ETE 7,977 7,977
Amount due to a director JE—REZ=FIE 754 754
Amount due to a major shareholder B — R EEREHRIA 38,263 38,263
Dividends payables FET R B 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings HifEE 11,000 11,000
68,506 68,506
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB-—=H+=-A=+—H
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost: RE R AR Eth e aE
Trade payables ERESER 3,813 3,813
Other payables and accruals E At T AR R IERT B A 8,266 8,266
Amount due to a director B —REERE 759 759
Amount due to a major shareholder EN—ZETERERIE 18,709 18,709
Dividends payables FET AR B 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings HEMEER 11,000 11,000
Bank borrowings RITEHE 19,000 20,495
65,987 67,482
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9.

72

T-mEt- A=+ AR
FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices, respectively;

° the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivate instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;
and

° the fair value if non-optional derivative instrument is calculated
using quoted prices where such prices are not available, the
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
and the applicable curve for the duration of the instruments.
For option based derivative, the fair value is estimated using
option pricing model (for example, the Binomial model).

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values due to their short-term maturities.
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fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

10.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to
outside customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income for the year

are as follows:

W s R E AW A

Wt (TFRAREEZ 2 X8) EAKERS
REPHEE MmO W & EU R FINRIT
R SRR RIRRAFER -

AEBERFER S REMBADTOT -

2014 2013
—F-mE —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Revenue

Sales of controller systems for consumer
electrical and electronic appliances and
income from sales of small electrical
appliances

Sales of controller systems for mobile
phones and income from sales and
assembly of mobile phones

Other income
Bank interest income
Government grants (Note i)
Rental income (Note ii)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of paid in advances
Sales of scrap materials
Sundry income
Waiver of trade and other payables

Yzs

HEREERNETHmH

0| 92 2 45 T G EE /N AR

BRHOWA
43,787 46,105
HERDEEEHISERES L
$HE IR E AR UA
= 934
43,787 47,039
Hib g A
RITHBHA 3 7
BB e (FIaEiD) 120 150
WA (HEED 580 422
BREME MFEN AR
EONERIEY S 28 -
BE B9 55 S BR 91 19
HIEUA 8 8
M85 NEMER RN 158 105
988 711
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE_Z—MNE+_A=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME — Continued

11.

74

[0] The amounts relate to government grants received during the year ended 31
December 2014 and 2013, which were granted RMB120,000 for postdoctoral
researchers state-funded programme. In addition, the government grants of
amount RMB30,000 received for the year ended 31 December 2013 included
solatium payments received from Yuyao City.

10.

Wk HMBA — &

(i) ZRERBEE_T—NMFR-_FT—=F+=A
=+ —BIEFERROETHESER - TytiE
TR REBREYBEABRETFHNEDARE
120,000 ¢ oM HE=ZZ—=F+= A4
S+-BLFERROBAREIEARE
30,000 /T8 & PTCER ) R K T BT ) HR AL & ©

(ii) Rental income (i)  MESEA
2014 2013
—E-—NEF —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Gross rental income from investment properties REYEHESERA 580 422
Less: outgoings (included in administrative expenses) B R GEATRER) (100) (51)
Net rental income He WA FHE 480 371
SEGMENT INFORMATION 11. 2 EEHR

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segments performance focuses on the types of
goods delivered. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specially, the Group’s reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

a. Sales of controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and income from sales of small
electrical appliances — wholesalers.

b.  Sales of controller systems for mobile phones and income
from sales and assembly of mobile phones — wholesalers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

11.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December

SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

11. oHER — &

DEBUN IS N E LA
FAEBRUISBRLLSBED 2 WER
EEAHMNT :
BE+-HA=1+—HILEFE

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and
income from sales of small
electrical appliances

HaEm — HEREESHR

assembly of mobile phones

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales and

HEH - HERDEF

Consolidated

RETHARNZHERS EHBRRRHER
RBENEERFHBA HRABDBEFNRA w"E
2014 2013 2014 2018 2014 20138
—E-NFE T —ZEB-NF _—_T--F ZET-NF _—_T=F
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ARSTRE ARETT ARBTRE ARETT ARETRE AREBTT
Revenue ez
— External sales — HIMEE 43,787 46,105 - 934 43,787 47,039
Segment results DEPELE (2,690) 1,645 28 29,203 (2,662) 30,848
Unallocated income R BEUA
Bank interest income RITHBUA 3 v
Government grant BT & 120 150
Rental income AEBA 580 422
Reversal of other payables and 8 [0 2 b FE A BR AN
accruals EErEA - 44,658
Reversal of impairment BEFE B RE
recognised in respect of HERERE
paid in advances 28 -
Waiver of other payables o KA FER IR 90 -
Others Hith 98 8
Unallocated expenses KOBEFAZ
Amortisation of prepaid lease BB MNHEERE
payment (242) (242)
Depreciation of investment REMENE
properties (57) (58)
Finance costs A& AR (750) 912
Impairment loss recognised T HL A FE L AR KRR
in respect of other receivables EONRIEY Sl = (596)
Loss on deregistration of a — 1P J88 A B HEH
subsidiary BREHEE (125) -
Loss on disposal of plant and HEmME M RENEE
equipment (53) -
Written off of plant and EER R & 2
equipment (2,164) -
Others Hith (2,489) (755)
(Loss) profit before taxation B F AT (518 ) i 7 (7,623) 73,530
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NMF+_A=+—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

11.

DEER — &

Segment revenues and results — Continued

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. Segment
results represent losses incurred by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs including bank interest
income, finance costs, loss on disposal of plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payment and loss on deregistration of a subsidiary.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

DRI N RE — &

REDF MG BREN T4 2 AN E
B HEAR - DMEERES S BEL
ZEE - AR RO RPRITREA (B
RITHEWA - BEKA - HEBE KR
1 M FE AN AH B SRR 00 B 18 DA B B & R
HELHER) - BB RD B R KRN
AMAEREERRELTERNTE

SR E RIS B -
DHEERER

AT RIZAIZR/OMEINNAEEEER

reportable segment:

At 31 December

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and
income from sales of
small electrical appliances

HEBE — HEHEESR

BEMDN

R+=FA=+—H

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales
and assembly of
mobile phones

HEBE — HERDEF

Consolidated

RETARWEHSERE BHIBRAGRHER

REENHEENEA ERRBHEFNRA wE
2014 2013 2014 2018 2014 20138
—E-NF —T—=F ZE-NF -—T-=F =ZEB-NOF -—T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETT AR¥®TR ARBTT AREBTRE ARETrT
Segment assets NEAE 9,170 14,123 - 2,112 9,170 16,235
Unallocated corporate assets AOBREEEE 9,526 8,353
Total assets BEE 18,696 24,588
Segment liabilities HEaE 16,487 9,970 - 5,332 16,487 15,302
Unallocated corporate liabilites ~— RO EEE 54,457 53,908
Total liabilities mar’ 70,944 69,210
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued
Segment assets and liabilities — Continued

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
investment properties, prepaid lease payment, amount due
from a related company and bank balances and cash. Assets
used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the basis
of the revenues earned by individual reportable segments;
and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
bank and other borrowings, dividends payables and amount
due to a director/a major shareholder. Liabilities for which
reportable segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.

11.

DEER — &

IHEEREE — &

REEBNBHNRAREEDBEOERER

PIBEEANRTRENH  ERE
WE - BNEENE - R —EEE
AIRIB K SRTT AR SRR RSN © 7T
1#&"* HEEAOEERER 2
o RPN I T AR - I

PIBREEIDRTEENE  HERTT
REMEES  ENRENEN—=E
T/ AT ERFRIERI - ATRZR
D ERFAENAEZ D BEELL D
HEITHR -
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(E-E-NE+-A=+—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued

78

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Capital expenditure (Note)

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Inventories directly written off

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
paid in advances

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of paid in advances

Reversal of trade payables

Reversal of other payables and accruals

Written off of trade receivables

Written off of plant and equipment

Walver of trade and other payables

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss:

Amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Bank interest income

Depreciation of investment properties

Finance costs

Note: Capital expenditure includes plant and equipment.
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FERRERE
FEERHH

FEMENERERNRESR

HEMBAARRNRERR

HERRE Rk ENER

~EHBARREECNER

RO NBENERERS
REBE
BEEFERRN

BEAGENESRETER

HARRE SR
AR R
HeE S REBENER

THRATIZSEARE

EREERDDBREFBNDE

BHBARENR
RITMSBA
RAMFNE
BERK

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and
income from sales of
small electrical appliances
T - HEHEEER
ETARNEHERAR
HENHERHUA

2013
—T-=f
RMB'000
ARETR

(8.734)

2

11. 2HER — &

Hitbn EBE R

BE+-A=1+—HILFE

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales
and assembly of
mobile phones
H&H - HERBER
BHERARRHEER
FHRRBEEHUA
2013
=%
RMB'000
AREFT

(38,591)

2,800

Mt : BEARXBERBEREE -

KB

Unallocated

(44,658)

104

Consolidated

2013
-T=F

RMB000
ARBTT

(47,325)
(44,658)
2,842
104
(108)
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HE—

11.

12.

T—NFEF+—A=+—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued 11. oER — &
Other segment information — Continued HittpEER — &
Turnover from customers of the corresponding years contributing RIBEEE  FEAYAREREASETEE
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows: FBIE10% MEP 2 e X BRI T ¢
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETT
Customer A ZEA 10,418 18,254
Customer B? BFB? N/A 738 F 2 5,618
Customer C? EFC? N/A 38 2 5,019
! Turnover from electronic appliances. 1 REBFRAMZEHEE -
2 The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the total sale of 2 HEEREANERERFE ZIHEREAEMTE
the Group in the respective year. #B10% °
Geographical information wEER
The Group’s business is primarily operated in the PRC. All of the REBEMEBETEAREES - AEEZ
Group’s revenue is attributable to customers in the PRC and Hong Wame2HRETFEREENER -
Kong.
An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets by HRABD D EEEMMAFE - B &
geographical area in which the assets are located has not been REEMEME 25 E FEREERN DT
presented as they are substantially located in the PRC.
FINANCE COSTS 12, BERA
2014 2013
—E-ME —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Interests on: FE -
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable — BER—FABHEEZ
within one year ﬁETﬂ%E 750 912
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13.

80

T-mEt- A=+ AR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTBHMAX
2014 2013
—E-F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Hong Kong profits tax BEFEH

— Current year —ARFE 5 -
— Under-provision in previous years —REFERENR 16 -
Income tax expense for the year FRFERHS 21 -

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the Company and the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has
been provided for the year ended 31 December 2014 as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in the PRC for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax was made for the year ended 31 December 2013 as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
that year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—
13.

TmE A=A

INCOME TAX EXPENSE — Continued 13. FifeHiBxx — &

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

FARSRAXATEGEEE L EMEM

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and W RFHIBRB R E B SR T -
other comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
—E-NF —EF-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT

(Loss) profit before taxation BRFLAT (B518) & A (7,623) 73,530
Tax at the applicable statutory tax rate BEAEEMEFENTIE (1,906) 18,383
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FEEMBEREREERN

operating in other jurisdictions MBARIMBIRERNTE (9) (34)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R AR A

for tax purposes M E 31 616
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERABAIRIEAE RN

recognised MBTE 1,903 864
Tax effect of income not taxable RS M = BB AU A R

for tax purposes ik 2 = (103)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses SRl AR RER T IB 1B

previously not recognised KM TS & = (19,726)
Under-provision in previous years BEFERENT 16 -
Tax reduction R (14) -
Income tax expense for the year FRAMEBHAX 21 -
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T-mEt- A=+ AR

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. FR(EE)=EF
2014 2013
—E—-mF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at R (18 ) & F 2 1%
after charging:
Staff costs, excluding chairman/directors’ BINAN(TRIEER/
emoluments )
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —He TEREMEDER
in kind 2,747 2,895
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIREF IR
contributions 186 121
Total staff costs 48 TR 2,933 3,016
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment BETENHEERE 242 242
Depreciation of plant and equipment WE MR T E 2,408 3,337
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENE 57 58
Total depreciation and amortisation e K EtsesE 2,707 3,637
Auditor’s remuneration = E BN & 397 621
Cost of inventories recognised as BERBAINFERAR
an expense 41,144 48,307
Inventories written off (included in FEMEGIATHER)
administrative expenses) - 2,795
Research and development expenditure T MR 162 36
Net foreign exchange losses SNIE B5 18 F RE 64 8
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEME M RERER 53 -
Operating lease rentals for rented premises ~ HHEYMEMNKLHERS 540 539
Written off of plant and equipment W sE R KRR A 2,164 104
DIVIDENDS 15. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 December TeEpEE —_2—NF+-_A=+—8I
2014 (2013: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the EEQH&@* R ERKRE(ZE—=
end of the reporting period. Fm)  BWMEHARNANR - IFEEZRIRT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

16. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN, 16. ETRA(BEEXE EBERES

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ <)
EMOLUMENTS)

2014 2013

—E-mE —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind e TENEMEYER 2,787 2,969

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIS 186 123

2,973 3,092

Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong employees. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees, Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group
companies (the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees
makes monthly contribution to the scheme a 5% of the employee’s
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HKD1,500 per month (2013: HKD1,250 per
month), a total contribution of approximately RMB20,000 (2013:
RMB12,000) was made by the Group in respect of this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Company
and those subsidiaries, which operated in the PRC, are required to
contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
employees. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees.
Under the state-sponsored retirement plan, the Group has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions, a total
contribution of approximately RMB166,000 (2013: RMB111,000)
was made by the Group in respect of this scheme.

BB

AEBZHEERELHBBEBRFMER
B EMRARE R HI A ES T EI([58
Bastal)) - Bt sIBR R EHEHIE
KET 8 ABUZEATE - BRIE®RES
e AEEREBNERARTEEDR
HEESAYIREABEENSN WA (TEE
Bt RABEEEID)ERHK - BERE
EMHZEAEA1,5008T(ZE— =4
FA1,25087) AR - RNEBRZTEIE
TR HRBRTEL A AR 20,0000(=F
—=F : AR¥12,0007T) °

Bl (FBERIM)

ZRHE A GG RERETE - AR R RIE
FPREEENZENBARARMAREEE
HE R ETEIHEE - EBRBRAKEF
SFEAERMERKES N2 IENKRE -
BERREARERSE  NRE@BSFEHE
;AN BAHHMERERKRSMNREERK
BRI L A AYE - AEB KA EE
R R B L B AR 166,0007T (ZF
—=4: AR 111,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_ZT-—NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

17. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 17. £ ESREE#ME
EMOLUMENTS

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments IE -EEREEHS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2013: ten) ENSHENNE(ZE—=F: +8)XF

chairman, directors and three (2013: four) supervisors were as BER-LZA(ZZT—=F: NK)EEH

follows: 00T ¢

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE_ZE-—NMFEF+=-A=1+—HILF
E

Name

"4

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) FEREE(FE)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang TTEEEE

Mr. Zhu Chun Rong RELEE
Non-executive directors FHITES

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping ZEFEE

Mr. Zheng Xin R A

Mr. Zhu Guo Dan AEK LA

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin ES 30
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BEHREE
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie bt
Supervisors BEx
Mrs. Mao Li Hong EMT L
Mr. Li Yuhua FERERLE
Mrs. Shi Wei Na e £
Total et
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

17. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 17. £/  -EEREEME — &
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Year ended 31 December 2013 BEr—_FE—=fFf+_-_H=1+—HIF
E
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Name Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 28 RIRER
4 we  REVEMN SHEMER fmEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREBTT ARETT ARETR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) FEZ S (EE) - - - -
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang TTEEELE - - - -
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong RERTE - - - -
Non-executive directors FHITES

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping ZEF A - - - -
Mr. Zheng Xin BIxAE - - - -
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan AEK K - - - -

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Lu Xuan EHzrE(RZF—=F

(Resigned on 28 June 2013) NAZTN\BEHE) - - - -
Mr. Lu Xiang Tai BEREZR A - - - -
Mr. Jiang Mei Yin EZERREE(RZT—=F

(Appointed on 28 June 2013) NAZTNBEZRT) - - - -
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie BRI E - 40 - 40
Supervisors E=x
Mrs. Mao Li Hong FRAT 2+ - - - -
Mrs. Ma Ying BB+ (RZE—=%F

(Resigned on 28 June 2013) SNAZT\HEE) - 34 2 36
Mrs. Shi Wei Na Pzt - - - -
Mr. Li Yuhua FREXE(R_ZT—=F

(Appointed on 28 June 2013) NAZTNBEZF) - - - -

Total Loy - 74 2 76
Notes: MEE -

No directors and supervisors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the two BE_F-NFR-_F-=F+_A=+—HLMEF
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. ElrEEEREENEXRBEWNETAHNE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE_Z—MNE+_A=+—HILFE

17. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 17. £/  -EEREEME — &
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Senior management’s emoluments EREEEHS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the Group, none KEFMAEESHMALTH HE(—S
(2013: none) was a director of the Company whose emolument are . ﬁ&)ﬁ@ﬂ%% CH B
e e oS SRR RUTECT=

remaining - gnestp ' ﬂ%)ﬂa?—i%’rﬁﬂi/\iﬁ’] ——
2014 2013
—2-MF —F—=fF
RMB’000 RI\/IB 000

ARBTR ARETT

Salaries and other benefits in kind FEMEMEYET 744 670
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFF IR 33 12
777 682
Their emoluments were within the following band: BEZHHANFUATHER
Number of employees
EEAH"
2014 2013
—E-EF —EF—=
Nil to RMB792,833 (equivalent to TE ARMET92,833 7T
HKD1,000,000) (4847 1,000,000 7% 7T.) 5 5
No emolument have been paid by the Group to the directors and HE-_Z-—NFRER-_FT—Z=ZF+=A
supervisors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as =t+—HLEMEFE  AREYEEAR
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as RIEENESN A RE A TS
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended 31 SEERSIMASIMALAEER 2 88
December 2014 and 2013. SAERBEHE
18. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. B (EF5#H) &R
The calculation of the basic loss per share (2013: earnings) for the HE-_Z—MOF+-A=+T—HILEFEHN
year ended 31 December 2014 attributable to owners of the RKRARHEEAELERAERNSE(ZZE—=
Company is based on the consolidated loss of approximately F:ABFM)DBBEFRNEEEBEEROARE
RMB7,147,000 (2013: profit of approximately RMB72,255,000) 71470000 ( ZE—=F  FHAHARE
and the weighted average number of 500,000,000 shares (2013: 72,255,0007T ) & B 2 17 M0 #E T 19 iR &
500,000,000 shares) in issue during the year. 500,000,000 & (== — =4 : 500,000,000
f)MmatE o
No diluted (loss) earnings per share have been presented for the HREEZZ—NFRZTE—=F+=H
two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 as there was no =+—H ¢ﬁ|ﬁ1l¢r£1?ﬁ§§fﬁ7ﬁaﬂﬁ%
diluted potential ordinary share outstanding for both years. SERUER AR - E b 2 5 2 m EF

EeEREE (R B7 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

19. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. BMERRE
Computer
Leasehold Plant and and office
improvements machinery equipment Total
ERR
HEWEEE B E R Hees WAERE BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT ARET T ARETTT

COST R
At 1 January 2013 R-—T—=%—A—H 3,031 17,941 3,180 24,152
Additions RNE 3,041 374 199 3,614
Written off (Note b) s (MisEb) - (1,386) - (1,386)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—H 6,072 16,929 3,379 26,380
Additions RNE 1,220 - 27 1,247
Disposals k=4 - (16,879) (1,522) (18,401)
Written off (Note b) s (3t b) (7,292) (50) (1,240) (8,582)
At 31 December 2014 R-—E-—mE+=-A=+—A1 - - 644 644

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RGHifE

At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—HF—H 466 13,136 2,896 16,498
Provided for the year FERNEE 1,792 1,512 33 3,337
Eliminated on written off (Note b) P SE R ¥ 88 (B st b) - (1,282) - (1,282)
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+-_A=+—H 2,258 13,366 2,929 18,553
Provided for the year FEREE 1,706 646 56 2,408
Eliminated on disposals A ERF - (13,969) (1,378) (15,347)
Eliminated on written off (Note b) PSR £ 88 (BT sEb) (3,964) (43) (1,144) (6,151)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NE+=-A=+—8 - - 463 463

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT ZitREEE

LOSSES
At 1 January 2013 and RZE—=F—H—AK

31 December 2013 —E-=F+-A=+—H 1,225 1,642 1156 2,982
Eliminated on disposals A ERF - (1,637) (78) (1,715)
Eliminated on written off (Note b) A 8 (M sEDb) (1,225) (5) (37) (1,267)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-NE+=—A=+—H - - - -
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-NE+=—A=+—H - - 181 181
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 2,589 1,921 335 4,845
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HE—

ME+—A=1t—RIFE

19. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — Continued

20.

88

Notes:

(@)

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives less their residual values at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of the lease
or 20%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Computer and office 20%
equipment

The carrying amounts of leasehold improvements, plant and machinery, and
computer and office equipment of approximately RMB2,164,000 (2013:
RMB104,000) were scrap and damaged due to relocation of factory premises
and therefore written off during the year ended 31 December 2014.

19. BERRE — &
it

(@ R E KRR TR B TyrEE AR A BRI =
HEEWABRER T FRITE

MEMELRE  REHH20%

(AR & A%E)
5 K 25 10%-20%
B 20%

WAERME

(b) BREEHARE?216400T(ZF—=F: A
R¥104,0007C) EEWE LS - BFE R
NREBRERAERBERBRERE MEERE
o EARREBE—E-NF+_A=+—RALF

RIS -
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. BEWHE
RMB’000
ARBFIT
COST 2%
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 RZE—=%—H—H"
and 31 December 2014 —F—=F+-"A=+—8xK
—E-mWE+=-A=+—H 1,326
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT Z:iHFERHE
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—H—H 174
Provided for the year F NS 58
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=-A=+—H 232
Provided for the year F NS 57
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+=-A=+—H 289
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+=-A=+—H 1,037
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,094
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — Continued

20.

21.

Notes:

(@)

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the period of the shorter of the term of the lease or at 4% per annum.

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC under medium term
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose and are measured
using the cost model.

The investment properties represent the building situated in the PRC. Since the
comparable market transactions are infrequent and the alternative reliable
estimates of fair value are not available, the Directors consider that the fair
value of the investment properties are not reliably determinable on a continuing
basis.

Investment properties with a carrying amount of Nil (2013: approximately
RMB1,094,000) have been pledged for bank borrowings, Note 41.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

The Group’s prepaid lease payment is land use right, which is

20. REYEX — &

21.

Bifat

(@)

A YR TR IR B AR IR B ST A 4% (LA
BREERENE -

R E YR E P AR E - AR
HEXMIEEARTHE - WARAEXGGE -

RAMFIEMNPENET - R BB
BRGWA% - BIREEAM A FENA SR
HEERR  REMENRIFEL KRB EEM

AISEERE

BEEEATIT(ZT—=F : HARHK 1,094,000
T EIREMECIER - UBERTEE (R
41) -

BANEERE

AEEz ANEEFIRERIEDHBELOM

located in the PRC held under medium-term leases. BFEMPRBE L o
2014 2013
—EF-nmF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BERMETHDN
Current asset TEEE 242 242
Non-current asset ERBEE 4,115 4,357
4,357 4,599

Prepaid lease payment with a carrying amount of Nil (2013:
approximately RMB4,599,000) have been pledged for bank
borrowings, Note 41.

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

FEHERZT(ZZE—Z=ZF: HARK

4,599,000 7T ) By FE{F 7

ERAEDEMR A

BUSRITEE (MFE41)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—

22,

23.

90

T-mEt- A=+ AR

INVENTORIES 22, 78
2014 2013
—E-NF —EF-=F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥T R AREET T
Raw materials R 1,853 2,034
Finished goods RIEK S 472 515
2,325 2,549

The inventories written off for the year amounted to Nil (2013:
approximately RMB2,795,000).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

FA - FEMBEZTL(ZE—=F : HA
R#2,7950007T) °

23. EWEZERN

2014 2013

—E—NF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTF T

Trade receivables FEUE F R 6,008 5,128
Less: Accumulated impairment losses A REDRVERE = (36)
6,008 5,092

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to its trade
customers.

Impairment loss on trade receivables is recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount if remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables directly.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables
were individually determined to impair. The individually impaired
receivables are recognised based on the credit history of its
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and
current market conditions. Consequently, specific provision for
impairment was recognised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-T- NFT-A=1t"HLFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the

23.

FEWE SRR — &

AT RRFEZAZINEREZEF(EH

invoice date, net of impairment losses recognised was as follows: B EERABERE) NIRRT
2014 2013
—EF-NF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
0-90 days 0&£90H 5,911 4,975
91-180 days 912180H 17 71
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 31 1
Over 365 days 365 H A = 49 45
6,008 5,092

The movement in impairment losses of trade receivables were as
follows:

FEW R SRR H B ERIBNEE T

2014 2013

—F-NF —F-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETTT

At 1 January n—HA—H 36 36
Written off during the year F RS (36) -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H - 36
At 31 December 2014, included in the impairment loss are RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H " BEHE

individually impaired trade receivables in the Group with an
aggregate balance of Nil (2013: approximately RMB36,000) which
are long outstanding and have been placed in severe financial
difficulties and the management assessed that the recovery of the
amounts is doubtful. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

BREBREHET(ZTE—=F HARK
36,0007t) 2 REAKREEBEBERHRENB
RE#FHEMEBRENAEERKESE
o EBEFTEANREBARE - KNEE
I L S RIS A IR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—

23.

24,

92

T-mEt- A=+ AR
TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued

The aging analysis of trade receivables which were past due but

23. EREZRN — &

B8 BB RBE ) FE U E 5 Rk R A fR e )

not impaired are as follows: M
2014 2013
—EF-NF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AREFT
Within 90 days past due BHEAOHRA - 71
91 to 180 days past due #H 91 =180 H 48 1
Over 180 days past due BHI180 H A L 49 45
97 117
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related REEARRENEYE ZRERETEEE

to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality

and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

REFNFZEFP AR

8 HE KB ER B E 5 RN TS M
REBFARFEECENBIEP AR

REBELSR BEEERA/RSHESRNE
EERWEEANE  BNHBEA/FTEH

Yem - %

B EMBERE - AEE

I L% SRR T ERR -

24, FEAFE  RERHMOEWERR

RECEIVABLES
2014 2013
— § - QE — 7 — i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREET T
Prepayments B FIE 3 119
Deposits B 102 77
Other receivables H IR AR X 647 3,047
752 3,243
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B BREHRVEREE (596) (596)
156 2,647
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE-T- NFT-A=1t"HLFE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24,
RECEIVABLES — Continued

At 31 December 2014, included in the impairment loss are
individually impaired other receivables is the Group with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMB596,000 (2013:
RMB596,000) which are have been placed in severe financial
difficulties and the management assessed that the recovery of the
amounts as doubtful. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

25. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 25.

2014
—E—F
RMB’000
ARETT

ANRE RERHEMERERER

— &

R_E—NE+-F=+—08 BEEE
BEEHRATHARES9,000T(=ZF
— =% AR¥596,000T) ZEEREE
B 755 PR 6 P A 1 )RR 1 A AR R B L th B
WIER  BEEITERREARE A
SEVERZEERITHELMAERRD -

FEW — B RBE R R FH

Maximum amount
outstanding
during the year
FRARMEER
ob=3=E-0

2013 2014 2013
—E-=F ZEB-NFE —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TE ARBTT

Zhejiang Wansheng New Material 17T & B #7T A # ok

Company Limited (“Zhejiang BRATA
Wansheng’)* (MmIgeel) =

150 150 150

The directors of the Company considered Zhejiang Wansheng is a
related company of the Group as Wanli Holding Group Company
Limited, the major shareholder of the Company, has beneficial
interest in Zhejiang Wansheng. The amount is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

HRARRTIERREEZREERNE
RARMINISEEEESER it
ARABEERR/MIERRAEE NS
DA ZEFAREEN RERARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—
26.

27.

94

T-mEt- A=+ AR
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.15% to
0.35% (2013: 0.15% to 0.35%) per annum.

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate:

26.

RITEBRERS
RITHEBRIEFFENT015EE035E 2
M(ZZ—=F : N F0.15E2Z=0.35F 2 )
KI5 FRET B ©

RITHEBRNASBIET IR (PAR 2 187
M ERBHINEERE M EEEHE)

2014 2013

—ZT-mF —F-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBFIT

HKD BT 538 17

At 31 December 2014 approximately RMB1,643,000 was
denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC (2013:
RMB2,183,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct
foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

27.

R-E—NFE+-F=+—H HARK
1,643,000 TTIA AR EHE - WiF AFEHY
RIT(ZZ—=F : AR¥2,183,0007T) °

ARBREERRBAEMER - Rl

1R 35 B 9 3 ) O BB B IR 0] IR AEEE - &
[ERMAIEFERE  ANEERESBIRE
EITIMNEEFMIBTTEARB LR AR
B o

FE1+ 8 5 AR K
BERROTEEENHA0A -

NBERRIREZH2INENE FER
RIBRER AT PN R0 -

2014 2013

—E-nmEF —F—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETT

0-90 days 0Z90H 5,222 2,871
91-180 days 91£2180H = -
181-365 days 181 £365H - 65
Over 365 days 88365 H 850 877
6,072 3,813
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—

27.

28.

29.

T-MFEF+_A=+—HIEFE
TRADE PAYABLES — Continued 27. BENESENX — &
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made a REE_Z-—HNF+A= + HIEFE -
reversal for trade payables of Nil (2013: approximately AEBRBOENESIRFAEZEL(ZE—=
RMB47,325,000 which was due to the amounts not being required F ) AR 47,325, OOOTE JRERZK
to be settled for a long period of time and based on the legal ERPARFERGEEULIBIEAREEFEH
opinion from the Group’s PRC legal advisors that there were no FRERCERRR  ZERNERLE
current or future liabilities from these payables). BRI RKEE)
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HMEMNBRRRESTER
2014 2013
—E-NE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEF T
Other payables E Ath FE AT BR K 7,977 8,266
Accruals FERTE A 558 733
8,535 8,999
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made a REE-_T—NF+-A=+—HILFE "
reversal for other payables and accruals of Nil (2013: approximately AEEROEMENRERREFERS T
RMB44,658,000 which was due to the amounts not being required (ZZ2—=F : HHAR¥ 44,658,0007T ' |7
to be settled for a long period of time and based on the legal ARZFIERARE ZEREEURBEAR
opinion from the Group’s PRC legal advisors that there are no EEPBUEEBHZEZEER - ZE5EN
current or future liabilities from these payables). BRI EERIIAKRERE) °
Included in other payables and accruals are the following amounts HEM RN ERT &R EE NHI50E (BA
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the HYEENERNIEEE NI EE ST
entity to which they relate: B) :
2014 2013
:§_ QE — 7 —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AEEFT
HKD BT 470 -
=
AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 20. BN —BESNA
ZEFIEEER - B RAREREER

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.
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HE—

30.

31.

32.

33.

96

T-mEt- A=+ AR

AMOUNT DUE TO A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER 30. BN —BXERRENE
The amount is due to Wanli Holding Group Company Limited and ZHBAEERNEETEREBRNOBRAF
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed term of ZEOE - REEM . B REEFEERE -
repayment.
DIVIDENDS PAYABLES 31 ERRE
The dividends payables represent the final dividend declared for ENEEER_ZTNERBEARNE
Promoter Shares in 2004 and shareholders of the Company in KB ARHBE RN =TT HFRAR R
2005 which amounting to RMB940,000 and RMB3,500,000 REROKREE - 758 AR 940,000
respectively. 7T AR 3,500,000 7T
OTHER BORROWINGS 32. Hihfg&
The loan was obtained from Yuyao Wanli Mortgage Company AmPKQIxHx?T%iT BREERDAR
Limited, a subsidiary of a major shareholder — Wanli Holding RAlZ —HMBARIRGTEEAEFR
Group Company Limited and is unsecured, interest-free and has RNAE] AR SEER . 28 REEEER
no fixed term of repayment. Hyo
BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITEE
2014 2013
—ZT-NEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
Secured bank borrowings BRIRRITEER = 19,000

At 31 December 2013, the bank borrowings represented a bank
revolving loan bear interest at 7.87% per annum and repayable
within one year. The bank borrowings with aggregate principal
amount of RMB19,000,000 were secured by the Group’s
investment properties and prepaid lease payment with carrying
amounts approximately of RMB1,094,000 and RMB4,599,000
respectively. The bank borrowings were fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—MFE+-_A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL &S
Number of

shares Amount
iidvip: - EE| &5
000 RMB’000
TFix AREF T

Authorised, issued and fully paid: EE C BETRER -

At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 R-ZEBE—Z=F—H—H -
and 31 December 2014 —E—=H+=-A=+—H

ER—Z-W&E+=-HA=+—H 500,000 500,000
Domestic share (Note a) A& (H5Fa) 370,000 370,000
H shares (Note b) HA% (ff5EDb) 130,000 130,000
500,000 500,000

35.

Notes:

Pursuant to an approval dated 4 June 2003 issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, all the shares of the Company, which were issued and
fully paid, being 37,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each,
were sub-divided into 370,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
RMBO0.10 each.

On 14 November 2003, the Company commenced the trading of the newly
issued 130,000,000 H shares of RMB0.10 each on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, including 117,000,000 H shares to institutional investors by way of
placement and 13,000,000 H shares for subscription by members of the public
in Hong Kong under the Public Offer at the Offer Price of HKDO.50 (equivalent
to approximately RMB69,550,000). Following the issue, the share capital and
capital reserve of the Company increased by approximately HKD12,150,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,000,000) and HKD52,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB56,550,000) respectively.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately RMB54,636,000 (2013: RMB53,262,000)
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has

been

recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unused tax losses incurred by the Company and PRC subsidiaries
can be carried forward for a period of five years. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

BifaE

(@ BIEFEBEFEBEERZEER 2T =FA
OB AR - BEITRER M AR AR
3 - BNE AR E & /& A KR #1.00 7T # 37,000,000
[REBRFEFALRESREBAARKEIOTH
370,000,000 & i8R -

(b) RZZE=F+—A+MHA - A2 AR
FTEI34R B 2 #7317 #9 130,000,000 B F A R
BOA0TTHIHE - BENEE A E FHER
& & H)117,000,000HAE » A RARIE AR &
REEBOSOELHEARARALRED
13,000,000 A H % (48 & 7 49 A B # 69,550,000
T) o BN EITIE - AARIBRAREAREED A
# & #912,150,0007% T (1 & R O A R &
13,000,000 7T ) }52,850,000 7% 7T (#8 & 4 A
R ¥ 56,550,0007T) °

35 EFEBIEA

RRERR  NEBBARBAHEBEY
ANERBE 54,636,000 (ZT—=4F : AR¥
53,262,0007T) A R EKEEAR @ F] o B
A 2R B i F SR &9 S AT FERIME - B 3
WREMECEHIEEE - RIFFHBEE
BRFER - ARE RF BB AR EED
REPABEBEAIERAFTHANLEE - Hib
RIS 1B A R HA A -
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35.

36.

98

T-mEt- A=+ AR
DEFERRED TAXATION — Continued

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB13,659,000 (2013:
RMB13,316,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i) During 2005 to 2011, the Company (formerly known as
Ningbo Yidong Electronic Company Limited) borrowed from a
former related company, Xian Ruilian Electronic Material
Company Limited (“Xian Ruilian” or “Plaintiff”) of working
capital totalling approximately RMB164,968,000. In 2012, the
Company was under restructuring, and China Ruilian Holding
Corporation (“China Ruilian”) agreed to undertake the debt
that the Company owed to Xian Ruilian amounting to
approximately RMB164,968,000 (Please refer to the “Deed of
Wavier” on page 20 of the Company’s joint announcement
dated 29 May 2012 regarding the acquisition of all the issued
H Share in Ningbo Yidong Electronic Company Limited for
details).

Some of the debts owed by China Ruilian to Xian Ruilian was
offset, and the remaining debts amounting to approximately
RMB113,794,000. Pursuant to the Deed of Wavier entered
into among the Company, China Ruilian and Xian Ruilian,
after 24 May 2012, the date of which the Deed of Wavier
become effective, the Company ceased to be a debtor of
China Ruilian, it meant that the Company was waiver of
obligation. Thus, in fact, the Company shall not bear any
debts in this case.

On 15 October 2013, Xian Ruilian filed a claim through the
Beijing First Intermediate People’s Court (“Court”) against
China Ruilian as the first defendant for repayment of the
advanced amount with overdue interest totalling
approximately RMB123,611,000 (including interest of
approximately RMB9,817,000) and against the Company as
the second defendant.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES — Continued

U)

(i)

— Continued

According to the civil judgment (2013) Yi-Zhong-Min-Chu-Zi
No.12432 issued by Beijing No.1 Medium People’s Court on
7 May 2014. China Ruilian should repay the advanced
amount with overdue interest totalling approximately
RMB113,794,000 (including interest accured) to Xian Ruilian,
and there was no requirement for the Company (formerly
known as Ningbo Yidong Electronic Company Limited) to
bear any debts.

Based on the civil judgment, the Company has not made
provision for this claim in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

In January 2015, Shenzhen Bo Tai Yuan Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Plaintiff”) filed a claim through the Shenzhen Futian
District People’s Court (“Court”) against Shenzhen Shi
WanHao Wu Lian Technology Limited (“Shenzhen WanHao”,
a subsidiary of the Company) as the first defendant and
against Shenzhen Yitoa Electronics Technology Co., Ltd. and
Jiaxing Ming Ju Da Electronic Technology Co., Ltd as the
second defendants.

As Shenzhen WanHao has so far not yet received the
summons from the court and therefore could not obtain the
details of the case for their defence. The Directors confirmed
that Shenzhen WanHao had business with the second
defendant for about RMB96,000 only but no business with
the Plaintiff. The Directors are of the opinion that the
Company has strong grounds to defend the claim and
therefore, no provision is made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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37. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

Rental income earned during the year was approximately
RMB580,000 (2013: RMB442,000). The investment properties are
expected to generate rental yields of 11% (2013: 7%) on an
ongoing basis. The investment properties held have committed
tenants for the next 1 year (2013: 2 years).

At the end of reporting period, the Group had contacted with
tenants for the following minimum lease receivables:

37.

RERY
AEEFERHBA

FANHAS WAL A AR 580,000t (=
T—=4F: AR¥E442,0007T) - FELE
BEMERS WS EREH A% (ZZ—=
F7%)  BEREMENHP B AL
KR—F(ZZF—=F : MF)BEME -

RIEHR - AEBRU T EESSERE
SHBESFIA -

2014 2013
—E—mF —ET=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Within one year —FR - 380
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERLF (BEEEMS) - -
- 380
The Group as lessee AEBERAEEA
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHERBEASEREETHAE

for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of
five years and rentals are fixed. None of the leases included
contingent rentals and terms of renewal were established in the
leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

EEMNWEZ - HONBERBRREF
MEEE - WEIABEPNHEORED
FRIFTSI A o

RI|EHR - AEBRERIAT BEAEH
MR R E BN B RREHEERR
TR AGE

2014 2013

—E-ME —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTFT

Within one year —E W 397 396
In the second to fifth year inclusive FRF (RIEEEMT) 435 -
832 396
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

The balances with related parties at the end of reporting
period are disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements.

The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
Directors, details of their emoluments are disclosed in Note
17. The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group paid
rental expenses of approximately RMB50,000 (2013:
RMB150,000), electricity and water charges of approximately
RMB208,000 (2013: Nil) and other benefits of approximately
RMB94,000 (20183: Nil) to Zhejiang Wanli Properties
Development Company Limited, a subsidiary of a major
shareholder, Wanli Holding Group Company Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group sold
mobile phones of Nil (2013: approximately RMB24,000) to
Zhejiang Wanli Properties Development Company Limited, a
subsidiary of a major shareholder, Wanli Holding Group
Company Limited.

38. BEALXRS

(@)

RS HIREEREE A L H0AS
TA%Wﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ D e

AR EER

AEBEIZEEASREMEES
HMEFBRERME7 EFH
B ¥ BN E B @ LB A KRR R W5
AMESE -

HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=-+—HLF
B AEBENTIEERERRS
RAR(—RETEREEELRER
BHERARZHBAR) IHHEE
&R ARES0,000T( —T—=4F :
AR¥150,0007T) * KEBHAR
# 208,000 (=T — =4 : TjL) M
REMBHRHARE 94,000 (=ZF
—ZF T e

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIF
B AEBERNIEEFEERES

RE(—BEERTEREREE
BB AT ZHBRR) EER
BEETL(ZE—Z=ZF: HARE
24,0007T) °

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 101

BRI G AR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE_Z—MNE+_A=+—HILFE

39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

39. RQAMMBRAKRER

2014 2013
—ZT-NEF —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaF AR¥ TR AREFT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment TR 55 M 5% 1 4 3,243
Investment properties "EYE 1,037 1,094
Prepaid lease payment SELRRiEN=E 4,114 4,356
Investments in subsidiaries RHEB AT E’JT & () 5,621 5,621
10,776 14,314
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables FEWE SR 42 52
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - Zek
other receivables H A e I BR X 61 121
Paid in advances BN RIE 51 161
Prepaid lease payment FERNHEE %’K 242 242
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A (b) 3,164 2,234
Bank balances and cash ﬁﬁﬁ,%ﬁ%&iﬁ{f 53 291
3,613 3,101
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B SRR 850 931
Other payables and accruals ,H\ﬁﬁJEHHE K% FERTE 5,164 5,072
Receipt in advances TEUR IR 647 505
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTI B A B RA (b) 141 18,850
Amount due to a major shareholder FEN—Z T EARRNIE 38,263 18,709
Dividends payables FETIR B 4,440 4,440
Other borrowings EmES 11,000 11,000
60,505 59,507
Net current liabilities REBAEEFE (56,892) (56,406)
Net liabilities FEE (46,116) (42,092)
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital R A 50,000 50,000
Reserves G () (96,116) (92,092)
Capital deficiency B E 4L (46,116) (42,092)
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BE_Z-NF+_A=T—HLFE
INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY —

39.

39. RAARMMBRAKRER — &

Continued
Notes ik
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@) M E A BIRIRE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Unlisted investments, at cost I EMRE - 2K 14,011 15,211
Less: Accumulated impairment W ORE R (8,390) (9,590)
5,621 5,621
() Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries (b) FE U (FEAT) B8 A B 3RIR
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETFT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B A B 0B 37,742 38,685
Less: Accumulated impairment W ORE R (34,578) (36,451)
3,164 2,234
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEFTHI BB A B FRA 141 18,850
(©) Reserves © &
Statutory
Capital Other surplus  Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BEARRE Hitf#E EEBHLAES 25tEE st
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)
(PI&ED) (P& (B i)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2013 RZF—=F—F—H 40,449 241,510 23,701 (468,983) (163,323
Profit and total comprehensive i 8 R 2 ERA LR
income for the year - - - 71,231 71,231
At 31 December 2013 N-_ZT—=F+-fA=+—8H 40,449 241,510 23,701 (397,752) (92,092)
Loss and total comprehensive ENEEBREERYAE
expense for the year - - - (4,024) (4,024)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MF+-A=+—8 40,449 241,510 23,701 (401,776) (96,116)
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY —
Continued

n\/T\
HE—
39.

=

©

Reserves — Continued

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(i)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve includes the share premium arising from the issuance of
H shares after deduction of the respective share issuance costs of the
Company.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the waiver of the amounts due to a former
major shareholder upon change in shareholding in the Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) require the
appropriation of 10% of their profit after income tax determined under
the PRC accounting standards each year to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
According to the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association,
under normal circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be
used for making up losses, capitalisation into share capital and
expansion of the Company’s production and operation. For the
capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the
registered share capital.
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. FEHEAT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-E—NFEER - E—=F+-_A=+—
December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: B ARRIEEMBEARFBEOT :

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value of

registration paid up issued/ Attributable equity

Class of and operation/  registered/ interest held

Name of subsidiary sharesheld  establishment ordinary capital by the Company Principal activities

iR/ BARERT/
ifREE/ Bift/

MEAREE FEROER Ry EERAEE KARELRE TEER
2014 2013
“¥-mE —T-=%
Ningbo Yitai Electronic Contrbuted ~ PRC RMB15,000,000 51% 51%  Dormant
Company Limited capital
(‘Ningbo Yitai")
ERFETARAR BaRA G AR 150000007 51% 51%  HIE
(33
Ningbo Yidong Digtal Contrbuted ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - 99%  Deregistrated
Technology Co. Ltd. (Note 42)  capital (paid up 1,500,000
ERREERRERAT  EARA i AR5,000,0007C - 9%  HEED
(Hi3t42) (BRARE
1,500,0007C)
Hong Kong Wan Li Ordinary Hong Kong HKD10,000 100% 100%  Trading the electronic component
Enterprise Company Limited (paid up HKD1,000) and electronic subassembly
BRERLEERAT Lk R 10,000%7T 100% 100% EBETRHRETHH
(812 1,000%7)
Yuyao Gity WanHao Contrbuted ~ PRC RMB3, 180,000 100% 100%  Original Equipment Manufacturing
Technology Industrial capital
Company Limited
AATEZHRESXERLD  EARA i AR3,180,0007 100% 100%  RiRAERE
Shenzhen Shi WanHao Wu Contributed ~ PRC RMB3,180,000 100% 100%  Trading the electronic component
Lian Technology Limited capital and Original Equipment
Manufacturing electronic
Subassembly
AMIMEZNBHEERLRE KA G AE#3,180,0007C 100% 100% EEEFHRRLRERE
EFHH
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at RERKFRNIMER BEHRBATAE
the end of the year or at any time during the year. A AR IEE B E TS5
A non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Ningbo Yitai have no REZE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE -
material non-controlling interest, which was in process of REBFEE2EWMB AR ERICTEREE
deregistration for the year ended 31 December 2014. HEBIE P R B RIEE R -
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41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. EEEKH
At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the Group were REBEHR - AEBEETEESWEMA -
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group as EABAEERERZRITEEZRE 2R
follows: U
2014 2013
—E—MF T =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Investment properties "By = 1,094
Prepaid lease payment FERHEERIE - 4,699
42. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 42. —EH B A FHEBEER
During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group REBEZE_Z—NF+_A=+—HILHK
deregistered Ningbo Yidong Digital Technology Co. Ltd., a non- FE - AEBREELD —HEPRHTES
wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC which was inactive. ENFE2EWNBRRERICREBRIKE
iE /N
RMB’000
ARETT
Net assets of deregistered subsidiary BB ENHNBARNEEFE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - ke REMEKERK 126
126
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A (1)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary —EIM B A RS E L BE 125
The subsidiary deregistered during the year ended 31 December REBE-_Z-—NF+_A=1T—HILFE
2014 had no significant impact on the turnover and results of the B ECMBARE REBME X RE
Group. BAWmBEBATE -
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 43. BEXREE
The Company did not have any significant capital commitment as RZEB2—NE+_A=+—08 &R

at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HILEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-_NFE —_T-—=-F —_T—_F —_T——F _T-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RM/B’OOO RMIB’OOO RM/B'OOO
ARETRT ARETT ARKETT AREFT ARETT
Revenue Yoz 43,787 47,039 9,180 8,689 14,422
Cost of sales SEE MR (41,144) (48,307) (14,823) (19,927 (17,299)
Gross profit (Ioss) EFE(EE) 2,643 (1,268) (6,643) (11,238) (2,877)
Other income H A A 988 71 2,778 8,043 10,175
Impairment of trade receivables W E 5T /WE - - - (141) (482)
Impairment of other receivables Hoh U BR X
and paid in advances EH?EH%KIEWTE - (2,360) - (8,255) (8,569)
Impairment of property, ME - R NEERE
plant and equipment - - (1,225) (1,757) (11,213)
Impairment of an amount due from FEA AT E N A
former related company BB - (16) - -
Reversal of trade payables BOENE Z RN 88,473 - - -
Reversal of other payables and BB E b S BR
accruals E:tER - 3,510 - - -
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (9) (464) (584) (937) (1,381)
Written off of trade receivables WIEEKE SRR = (2,842) - - -
Administrative expenses THER (10,370) (11,318) (8,450) (11,520) (18,625)
Finance costs BE R AN (750) 912) (1,365) (1,802) (9,091)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME « WE KRR
plant and equipment and prepaid NIaNHERIA
lease payments o it | - - ) (3,430) (78,064)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - - 6,377 812 703
Loss on deregistration of B =R — TN B AR
a subsidiary B8 (125) - - - -
Reversal (provision) for claims, net RER L (BF)  F58 - - 770 634 (4,192
Loss (profit) before taxation B ATEE Caf) (7,623) 73,530 (7,366) (29,591) (123,616)
Income tax expense FTiERiAY (21) - - - @)
Loss (profit) for the year FAEECEF) (7,644) 73,530 (7,366) (29,991)  (123,620)
Attributable to: FEfh
Owners of the Company RREEAA (7,147) 72,255 (7,322) (29,491)  (123,610)
Non-controlling interests S g (497) 1,275 (44) (100) (10)
Loss (profit) for the year FRERECEH) (7,644) 73,530 (7,366) (29,591)  (123,620)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE -BENERS
At 31 December
R+=HA=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NE —T—=—F —T——F —T——F —T-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT ARBTR
Total assets BEEBH 18,696 24,588 29,323 32,548 102,600
Total liabilities BEEE (70,944) (69,210)  (147,490)  (394,437) (436,113
(52,248) (44,622) (118,167) (361,889) (333,513)
Equity attributable to owners RABEAA
of the Company FE(RRERS (52,881) (45,753) (118,023) (361,789) (333,513)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRE 633 1,131 (144) (100) -
(52,248) (44,622) (118,167) (361,889) (333,513)
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Location Type Lease Term

wE =i HE

No.9 Zhenxing Road, Fupin Economic Zone, Industrial Medium-lease term
Yuyao City Chengqu, Hangzhou City, T R AR A

Zhejiang Province, The PRC
HEMIE

T

Rk
KERBERER

& BEX O 557
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